

reduced to writing within thirty days and complied with as provided for in this section.

Passed the Senate May 1, 1975.

Passed the House April 29, 1975.

Approved by the Governor May 8, 1975.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 8, 1975.

CHAPTER 30

[Substitute Senate Bill No. 2183]

BUSINESSES AND PROFESSIONS—LICENSE AND REGISTRATION FEES

AN ACT Relating to businesses and professions; amending section 6, chapter 323, Laws of 1959 and RCW 18.08.150; amending section 10, chapter 323, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 1, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.08.190; amending section 13, chapter 323, Laws of 1959 and RCW 18.08.220; amending section 3, chapter 75, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 3, chapter 223, Laws of 1967 and RCW 18.15.040; amending section 6, chapter 75, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 2, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.050; amending section 7, chapter 75, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 4, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.060; amending section 3, chapter 84, Laws of 1959 as last amended by section 5, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.065; amending section 2, chapter 84, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 14, chapter 223, Laws of 1967 and RCW 18.15.095; amending section 13, chapter 223, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 7, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.097; amending section 8, chapter 172, Laws of 1901 as last amended by section 8, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.100; amending section 13, chapter 101, Laws of 1957 as last amended by section 18, chapter 223, Laws of 1967 and RCW 18.15.125; amending section 12, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.220; amending section 5, chapter 180, Laws of 1951 as last amended by section 23, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.18.090; amending section 14, chapter 215, Laws of 1937 as last amended by section 10, chapter 3, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 18.18.120; amending section 7, chapter 180, Laws of 1951 as last amended by section 27, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.18.140; amending section 14, chapter 52, Laws of 1957 as last amended by section 6, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.22.060; amending section 3, chapter 97, Laws of 1965 as amended by section 8, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.22.081; amending section 6, chapter 149, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 10, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.22.120; amending section 5, chapter 5, Laws of 1919 as last amended by section 9, chapter 97, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. and RCW 18.25.020; amending section 14, chapter 5, Laws of 1919 as amended by section 6, chapter 227, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.25.040; amending section 8, chapter 5, Laws of 1919 and RCW 18.25.050; amending section 10, chapter 5, Laws of 1919 as last amended by section 11, chapter 97, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. and RCW 18.25.070; amending section 3, chapter 201, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 6, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.28.030; amending section 28, chapter 16, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 21, chapter 292, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.29.020; amending section 33, chapter 16, Laws of 1923 as amended by section 3, chapter 47, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.29.040; amending section 32, chapter 16, Laws of 1923 as amended by section 5, chapter 47, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.29.070; amending section 29, chapter 52, Laws of 1957 as amended by section 1, chapter 49, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.32.110; amending section 5, chapter 93, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 2, chapter 49, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.32.120; amending section 25, chapter 52, Laws of 1957 and RCW 18.32.170; amending section 24, chapter 112, Laws of 1935 as last amended by section 3, chapter 49, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.32.180; amending section 10, chapter 112, Laws of 1935 and RCW 18.32.200; amending section 13, chapter 112, Laws of 1935 as amended by section 4, chapter 47 [49], Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.32.210; amending section 15, chapter 112, Laws of 1935 and RCW 18.32.225; amending section 7, chapter 43, Laws of 1957 as amended by section 22, chapter 292, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.34.070; amending section 12, chapter 43, Laws of 1957 and RCW 18.34.120; amending section 4, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.35.040; amending section 6, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.35.060; amending section 8, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.35.080; amending section 3, chapter 36, Laws of 1919 and RCW 18.36.040; amending section 11, chapter 36, Laws of 1919 and RCW 18.36.050; amending section 1, chapter 83, Laws of 1953 as amended by section 7, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.36.115;

amending section 6, chapter 108, Laws of 1937 as amended by section 8, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.39.050; amending section 10, chapter 108, Laws of 1937 and RCW 18.39.120; amending section 15, chapter 108, Laws of 1937 and RCW 18.39.130; amending section 8, chapter 108, Laws of 1937 and RCW 18.39.150; amending section 8, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 and RCW 18.43.050; amending section 11, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 as last amended by section 1, chapter 126, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 18.43.080; amending section 13, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 as amended by section 6, chapter 297, Laws of 1959 and RCW 18.43.100; amending section 14, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 and RCW 18.43.110; amending section 16, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 as last amended by section 2, chapter 126, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 18.43-.130; amending section 3, chapter 160, Laws of 1917 and RCW 18.50.050; amending section 7, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. and RCW 18.52.070; amending section 8, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. and RCW 18.52.080; amending section 11, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. as amended by section 9, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.52.110; amending section 13, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. and RCW 18.52.130; amending section 13, chapter 144, Laws of 1919 as last amended by section 10, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.53-.050; amending section 9, chapter 144, Laws of 1919 and RCW 18.53.070; amending section 6, chapter 4, Laws of 1919 as amended by section 11, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.57.050; amending section 17, chapter 4, Laws of 1919 as amended by section 1, chapter 82, Laws of 1921 and RCW 18.57.130; amending section 10, chapter 30, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.57A.040; amending section 35, chapter 202, Laws of 1955 and RCW 18.71.040; amending section 36, chapter 202, Laws of 1955 as amended by section 12, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.71.080; amending section 11, chapter 134, Laws of 1919 as last amended by section 9, chapter 284, Laws of 1961 and RCW 18.71.090; amending section 4, chapter 30, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.71A.040; amending section 5, chapter 239, Laws of 1949 as amended by section 4, chapter 64, Laws of 1961 and RCW 18.74.050; amending section 6, chapter 239, Laws of 1949 as amended by section 5, chapter 64, Laws of 1961 and RCW 18.74.060; amending section 7, chapter 239, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 13, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.74.070; amending section 9, chapter 222, Laws of 1949 as amended by section 3, chapter 15, Laws of 1963 and RCW 18.78.080; amending section 10, chapter 222, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 14, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.78-.090; amending section 3, chapter 72, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 18.82.030; amending section 6, chapter 72, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 18.82.060; amending section 6, chapter 305, Laws of 1955 as amended by section 6, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.83.060; amending section 23, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.83.082; amending section 9, chapter 305, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 16, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.83.090; amending section 22, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.83.105; amending section 17, chapter 305, Laws of 1955 as amended by section 17, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.83.170; amending section 16, chapter 202, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 15, chapter 133, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.88.160; amending section 19, chapter 202, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 18, chapter 133, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.88.190; amending section 20, chapter 202, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 19, chapter 133, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.88.200; amending section 4, chapter 200, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 19, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.90.040; amending section 5, chapter 200, Laws of 1959 and RCW 18-.90.050; amending section 10, chapter 71, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 7, chapter 50, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 18.92.115; amending section 17, chapter 71, Laws of 1941 and RCW 18.92.142; amending section 19, chapter 71, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 20, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.92.145; amending section 8, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.080; amending section 10, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.100; amending section 11, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.110; amending section 14, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.140; amending section 35, chapter 13, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 19.09.350; amending section 5, chapter 253, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 19.16.140; amending section 6, chapter 253, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 19.16.150; amending section 14, chapter 228, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 19.31.140; and amending section 21, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 43.24.085.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 6, chapter 323, Laws of 1959 and RCW 18.08.150 are each amended to read as follows:

All applications for examination must be filed with the director (~~(of licenses)~~) not less than sixty days prior to the date set for the examination. The application fee shall be (~~(forty dollars, twenty dollars of which shall accompany the applica-~~
~~tion, the remaining twenty dollars to be paid upon issuance of the certificate))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter

amended. Should the director deny issuance of a certificate of registration to any applicant, the ~~((initial))~~ examination fee shall not be refundable. Graduates of an approved architectural college may apply for and take the examination but shall not be granted certificates of registration until their required office experience is completed.

Sec. 2. Section 10, chapter 323, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 1, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.08.190 are each amended to read as follows:

Certificates of registration shall expire on the last day of June following their issuance or renewal. The director shall set the yearly fee for renewal which fee shall be ~~((not more than twenty-five dollars to be))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Renewal may be effected during the month of June by payment to the director of the fee set. In case any registrant fails to pay the renewal fee before thirty days after the due date, the renewal fee shall be the current fee plus an amount equal to one year's fee: **PROVIDED,** That any registrant in good standing may withdraw from practice by giving written notice to the director, and may thereafter resume practice at any time upon payment of the then current annual renewal fee.

Sec. 3. Section 13, chapter 323, Laws of 1959 and RCW 18.08.220 are each amended to read as follows:

The director may reinstate a certificate of registration to any person whose certificate has been revoked, ~~((provided))~~ if three or more members of the board vote in favor of such reissuance, whenever the board shall find that the circumstances or conditions that brought about the revocation are not likely to recur and that the person is then sufficiently trustworthy and reliable that the best interests of the public will be served by reinstatement of his registration. A new certificate of registration to replace any certificate lost, destroyed, or mutilated may be issued by the director and a charge ~~((of one dollar))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall be made for such issuance.

Sec. 4. Section 3, chapter 75, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 3, chapter 223, Laws of 1967 and RCW 18.15.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Any person of good moral character, free from contagious or infectious disease, at least eighteen years of age, having a diploma showing graduation from an eighth grade grammar school or capable of proving an equivalent education, and holding a license authorizing him to practice barbering in any one of the other states of the United States, the District of Columbia, or any territory of the United States or any foreign country (if such person is lawfully entitled to reside in the United States) and submits with his application a certificate of graduation from a barber school or college with requirements equal to the requirements of approved barber schools of this state, or provides an affidavit from the barber board of the state in which he is licensed, that applicant has graduated from said barber school or college of that state, shall be deemed qualified to make application for a license to practice barbering in this state.

Any applicant who is licensed in a foreign country shall furnish the board with an authenticated English translation of his license, applicable licensing law, and other supporting documents. Every applicant for such license, qualified under either of the foregoing provisions, shall file his application in the manner provided by law, on forms prescribed by the director (~~(of licenses)~~). Each such application shall have attached thereto the certificate of a licensed physician and surgeon that the said applicant is not afflicted with any contagious or infectious disease, and a certificate signed by two reputable citizens living in the community in which the applicant now resides or has recently resided that he is of good moral character. Each application shall be accompanied by two signed photographs of the applicant and a photostatic copy of his license authorizing him to practice barbering as hereinbefore provided, and a certificate of graduation or affidavit from barber board as aforementioned. Every applicant for such license shall pay a fee (~~(of thirty-five dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which fee shall accompany his application. The director (~~(of licenses)~~) upon the receipt of such application and fee shall notify the applicant of the particular date, city, and place where he is to appear for his examination for a license to practice barbering in this state.

Sec. 5. Section 6, chapter 75, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 2, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.050 are each amended to read as follows:

Barber examinations shall be held six times in each year in the months of February, April, June, August, October, and December; and on such particular dates, within the said times, and in such particular cities and places as the director of motor vehicles shall determine. Every applicant for a license or permit to practice barbering in this state shall be required to take an examination in each branch as follows: (1) Sanitation as applied to the practice of barbering, (2) sterilization as applied to the practice of barbering, (3) and as to whether he has sufficient knowledge of the common contagious and infectious diseases of the face, skin, and scalp, to avoid spreading thereof in the practice of barbering; (4) and as to whether he has sufficient knowledge of the use of chemicals, creams, lotions, and solutions as applied in the practice of barbering; (5) and in any other portion of the curriculum as required by this law; and such applicant shall be required to demonstrate to the barber examining committee his professional skill and ability in performing the following barber services: (1) Haircutting, (2) shaving, (3) massaging, (4) shampooing, and (5) conditioning his barber tools.

Any applicant, other than one applying under the provisions of RCW 18.15.040, who secures a passing grade in each branch of not less than seventy-five percent in his examination and who demonstrates to the satisfaction of the barber examining committee that he possesses the required professional skill and ability to properly perform each of the said barber services, not less than sixty-five percent of perfect, and possesses the other particular qualifications provided in this chapter, shall be entitled to receive, and the director (~~(of licenses)~~) shall issue to him, a permit to practice barbering in this state. Every person receiving such permit shall be required to serve one and one-half years (eighteen months) under the direct supervision of a licensed barber. A year shall be construed to mean a period of not less than fifty-two weeks consisting of forty hours per week of service by

the permittee. He must then pass an examination not less than seventy-five percent of perfect, and demonstrate to the satisfaction of the barber examining committee that he possesses the required professional skill and ability to properly perform each of the said barber services, not less than seventy-five percent of perfect, and possesses the qualifications required in this chapter, after which the director shall issue to him a license to practice barbering.

Any applicant under the provisions of RCW 18.15.040 who secures a grade in each branch of not less than seventy-five percent in his examination and who demonstrates to the satisfaction of the barber examining committee that he possesses the required professional skill and ability to properly perform each of the said barber services, not less than seventy-five percent of perfect, and possesses the other particular qualifications provided in this chapter, shall be entitled to receive, and the director (~~of licenses~~) shall issue to him a license to practice barbering in this state, until the first day of July next following the issuance of such license. Every applicant for such license shall pay a fee (~~of thirty-five dollars~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which fee shall accompany his application. The director upon receipt of such application and fee shall notify the applicant of the particular date, city, and place where he is to appear for his examination for a license or permit to practice barbering in this state.

Any unsuccessful applicant for a license or permit to practice barbering in this state shall be entitled to appear at any subsequent barber examination and be reexamined for a license or permit, as the case may be, to practice barbering in this state upon the payment of a reexamination fee (~~of fifteen dollars~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, and which reexamination fee shall be paid at the time of application for such reexamination, said application and fee to be submitted to the director at least fifteen days prior to an examination date: PROVIDED, That an unsuccessful applicant for a permit shall return to an approved school or college for an additional two hundred fifty hours of instruction before he may be reexamined.

Any person who applies for a license or permit to practice barbering under this chapter, and who does not appear for examination at the time, date, and place as notified by the director, shall forfeit application fees, and must reapply with a fee (~~of fifteen dollars~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which fee shall accompany his new application.

Any person holding a current manager-operator license of this state issued under the provisions of chapter 18.18 RCW shall be deemed qualified to apply to the director to be examined for a license to practice barbering, pursuant to the provisions of this chapter: PROVIDED, That any such applicant who fails said examination must then enroll in a licensed barber school of this state and complete a course of instruction of not less than two hundred fifty hours before applying to be reexamined for a barber license. The curriculum for such course of instruction shall be determined by the barber examining committee and approved by the director.

Sec. 6. Section 7, chapter 75, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 4, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.060 are each amended to read as follows:

Every person licensed as a barber or a permit barber shall pay an annual license fee ~~((of not less than five dollars nor more than fifteen dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, for a license or permit renewal certificate on or before the thirtieth day of June each year. ~~((The annual license and permit renewal fee shall be determined by the director under the provisions of chapter 34.04 RCW.))~~ Failure to pay the annual license or permit renewal fees before delinquency shall work a forfeiture of the license or permit, but the license or permit may be renewed within three years thereafter without examination upon application therefor by the licentiate or permittee, and payment of a fee ~~((of fifteen dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended plus all lapsed fees. Should the licentiate or permittee allow his license or permit to elapse for more than three years, he must be reexamined as for a new license or permit.

Sec. 7. Section 3, chapter 84, Laws of 1959 as last amended by section 5, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.065 are each amended to read as follows:

It shall be unlawful for any firm, corporation, or person to operate a barber shop without a shop location license for each barber shop. Application therefor shall be made to the director of motor vehicles. Each application for a license shall be accompanied by a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Upon receipt of the application and fee, the director shall issue a shop location license, if the barber shop meets the requirements of this chapter. Each license shall be issued for the shop and persons named in the application. Application for the transfer or assignment of a shop location license shall be upon such form as the director shall prescribe, and application shall be made within ten days of the sale or transfer. Upon the receipt of the application and a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, the director shall assign or transfer the shop location license, if the assignee or transferee and the barber shop meets the requirements of this chapter. If the application for transfer or assignment is not made within ten days, a penalty fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended will be made, prior to issuance of a license.

All licenses issued under this section shall expire on the first day of July next succeeding the date of issue. Each such license shall be renewable annually on or before the expiration date, and the application for renewal shall be accompanied by a fee ~~((of four dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Failure to obtain a renewal before delinquency shall work a forfeiture of the shop location license, but the license may be reinstated at any time after forfeiture upon the payment of the annual renewal fee, together with a penalty fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, upon satisfactory inspection.

Sec. 8. Section 2, chapter 84, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 14, chapter 223, Laws of 1967 and RCW 18.15.095 are each amended to read as follows:

It shall be unlawful for any firm, corporation, or person to operate a barber school or college without a license for each location. Application therefore shall be made to the director (~~(of licenses)~~). Each application for a school location license shall be accompanied by a fee (~~(of one hundred fifty dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Upon receipt of the application and fee, the director may issue a location license, if the barber school or college meets the requirements of this chapter. Each license shall be issued for the school or college and persons named in the application and may be transferable(~~(-PROVIDED)~~), if the transferee meets the requirements of this chapter. Whenever a registered school or barber college is discontinued the person to whom the registration is issued shall notify the director of such action and shall return to the director the certificate of registration of such school or barber college within ten days.

All licenses issued under this section shall expire on the first day of July next succeeding the date of issue. Each such license shall be renewable annually on or before the expiration date, and the application for renewal shall be accompanied by a fee (~~(of one hundred fifty dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Failure to obtain a renewal before delinquency shall work a forfeiture of the location license, but the license may be reinstated at any time after forfeiture upon the payment of the annual renewal fee, together with a penalty fee (~~(of one hundred dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 9. Section 13, chapter 223, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 7, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.097 are each amended to read as follows:

No person shall engage in teaching or instructing in barber schools or colleges without an instructor's license issued by the director. Each applicant for an instructor's license shall submit an application to the director on such forms as he may prescribe, and must comply with the following qualifications: (1) Each applicant must be at least twenty-five years of age; (2) must be of good health; (3) must be of good moral character; (4) must have had at least five years of experience as a licensed barber of this state in a licensed barber shop of this state immediately preceding application; (5) must have a current barber license; (6) must have at least a tenth grade education or be capable of proving an equivalent education as determined by the board for vocational education and local schools; (7) (~~(each applicant must)~~) take an examination administered by the examining committee(~~(-The examination shall cover)~~) covering such subjects as are usually taught in barber schools and colleges in practical and theory work; (8) such applicant shall be required to demonstrate to the barber examining committee his professional skill and ability in performing all of the barbering services as required by this chapter. Applications for an instructor's license must be made before becoming engaged in teaching or instructing, but applicant may be permitted to engage in teaching or instructing for a period of not more than sixty days, at which time he must present himself for examination. The fee for such license and examination shall be (~~(fifty dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW

43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Each license shall be renewed on or before July 1st; the renewal fee shall be ~~((twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. If application for a renewal is not received on or before July 1st, the renewal fee shall ~~((be twenty-five dollars plus))~~ include a penalty ((of twenty-five dollars)) fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. The instructor's license shall stand revoked if not used for a period of two years, and an examination as for a new license will be required before a license will be reissued.

Any person engaged as an instructor or manager-instructor on effective date of this chapter, in a barber school or college of this state, shall be issued a license under this section upon payment of the fees herein prescribed.

Sec. 10. Section 8, chapter 172, Laws of 1901 as last amended by section 8, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.100 are each amended to read as follows:

It shall be unlawful for any person to study the practice of barbering in any barber school or barber college authorized under this chapter unless he shall first have obtained and holds a valid student barber certificate issued pursuant to this chapter. Any person of good moral character, free from contagious or infectious disease, at least eighteen years of age, and showing completion of the tenth grade, or has an equivalent education as determined by the director whose determination shall be conclusive, shall be deemed qualified to make an application for and be entitled to obtain a student barber certificate authorizing him to study the practice of barbering in any barber school or barber college in this state. Application therefor shall be made to the director. Each application shall have attached thereto the certificate of a licensed physician and surgeon that the said applicant is not afflicted with any contagious or infectious disease, and a certificate signed by two reputable citizens living in the community in which the applicant now resides or has recently resided, that he is of good moral character. Each application shall be accompanied by two signed photographs of the applicant. Every such applicant shall pay a fee ~~((of five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which fee shall accompany his application. The director upon the receipt of such application and fee shall issue to each qualified applicant a student barber certificate which shall be valid for one year from the date of its issue, and which shall be subject to one renewal thereafter upon the payment of a fee ~~((of five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended: PROVIDED, That any student barber holding (1) a valid student barber certificate, and (2) a graduation certificate from any barber school or barber college authorized under this chapter shall be deemed qualified to make application for a permit to practice barbering in this state. Application therefor shall be made to the director. Each applicant shall pay a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended plus an amount equal to the annual renewal fee, which fee shall accompany his application. The director upon the receipt of such application and fee shall notify the applicant of the particular date, city, and place where he is to appear for his examination for a permit to practice

barbering in this state. Failure of applicant to appear for said examination will cause a forfeiture of fees.

Sec. 11. Section 13, chapter 101, Laws of 1957 as last amended by section 18, chapter 223, Laws of 1967 and RCW 18.15.125 are each amended to read as follows:

The examining committee shall arrange with the director for the employment of one or more inspectors who shall have the same qualifications as a committee member. The secretary of the committee shall have the right to inspect any barber shop or barber school. Any member, agent, or assistant of the committee, when authorized by the committee, may enter any such shop or school during business hours for the purpose of inspection. Every new barber shop, school, or college shall be inspected before being opened for business. If no inspection is made by the committee within fifteen days after receipt by the director of an application for a location license, and all other qualifications for said licenses are met, the director may issue such license and the new shop, school, or college may open for business and remain open unless, upon inspection, the shop, school, or college fails to meet the standards set forth in this chapter or in the rules and regulations of the committee. The fee of such original inspection shall be ~~((twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, said fee to accompany application.

Sec. 12. Section 12, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.15.220 are each amended to read as follows:

Any person duly licensed as a barber in this state, and who has satisfactorily completed a course of instruction in the practice of men's hairstyling as approved by the barber examining committee, shall be entitled to make application to be examined for a Washington state men's hairstyling certificate. The fee for such examination and certificate shall be ~~((fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended; and the application and fee ~~((to))~~ shall be submitted to the director at least fifteen days prior to an examination date. Any applicant for a certificate under this chapter who secures a grade in each branch of not less than seventy-five percent in his examination and who demonstrates to the satisfaction of the examining committee that he possesses the required professional skill and ability to properly perform each of the said men's hairstyling services, shall be entitled to receive, and the director shall issue to him an official Washington state men's hairstyling certificate, recognizing him as a certified men's hairstylist, and when accompanied by a current barber license of this state, shall entitle him to practice men's hairstyling.

PROVIDED, That persons engaged in the practice of men's hairstyling under this chapter are authorized to perform body waving and permanent waving to the extent necessary to style or arrange the hair on male patrons, but persons engaged in the practice of men's hairstyling under this chapter are not authorized to otherwise engage in the practice of cosmetology unless such person is licensed under chapter 18.18 RCW.

Sec. 13. Section 5, chapter 180, Laws of 1951 as last amended by section 23, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.18.090 are each amended to read as follows:

Each application (~~((shall be accompanied by the following fees:))~~) for student enrollment, ((five dollars;)) manicurist, ((seven dollars and fifty cents;)) operator, ((ten dollars;)) instructor operator, ((fifteen dollars;)) manager operator, ((five dollars;)) shop, ((twenty-five dollars;)) or school((, one hundred fifty dollars)) shall be accompanied by a fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Any applicant who fails to pass the examination may take the next succeeding examination with payment of an additional fee ((of seven dollars and fifty cents)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085.

Sec. 14. Section 14, chapter 215, Laws of 1937 as last amended by section 10, chapter 3, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 18.18.120 are each amended to read as follows:

Any person who has been licensed by proper authority of any state or territory or possession of the United States or any country may be issued a license without examination, provided the applicant's qualifications are substantially equal to the requirements of this chapter. Each application for a license under this section shall be accompanied by a fee ((of fifty dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 15. Section 7, chapter 180, Laws of 1951 as last amended by section 27, chapter 148, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.18.140 are each amended to read as follows:

Operator, manicurist, instructor operator, manager operator, shop, or school licenses may be renewed from year to year upon the payment on or before the first day of each July following their issuance, of a renewal fee ((as follows: Manicurist, not more than five dollars; operator, not more than five dollars; instructor operator, not more than six dollars; manager operator, not more than six dollars; shop, not more than seven dollars; school, not more than one hundred and fifty dollars, all such fees to be)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

A certificate of health is required with an application for an original license, one must also be filed with a renewal application.

Any manicurist, operator, manager operator, or instructor operator whose license has lapsed may have the same renewed upon payment of all fees which the applicant would have been required to pay to keep such license in effect, and an additional fee ((of five dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended for each lapsed year: PROVIDED, That any person whose license has lapsed for more than three years shall be reexamined, as in the case of any applicant for an original license.

Sec. 16. Section 14, chapter 52, Laws of 1957 as last amended by section 6, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.22.060 are each amended to read as follows:

Every applicant for a license to practice podiatry shall pay to the state treasurer a fee ((of fifty dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

An applicant who fails to pass an examination satisfactorily after the expiration of six months from the date of the examination at which he failed, is entitled

to a reexamination at a meeting called for the examination of applicants, upon the payment of a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended for each reexamination.

Sec. 17. Section 3, chapter 97, Laws of 1965 as amended by section 8, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.22.081 are each amended to read as follows:

Any applicant who has been examined and licensed under the laws of another state, which through a reciprocity provision in its laws, similarly accredits the holders of certificates from the proper authorities of this state to the full privileges of practice within its borders or an applicant who has satisfactorily passed examinations given by the national board of podiatry examiners, may, in the discretion of the examining committee be granted a license without examination on the payment of a fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended to the state treasurer: PROVIDED, That he has not previously failed to pass an examination held in this state. If the applicant was licensed in another state, he must file with the director ~~((of licenses))~~ a copy of his license certified by the proper authorities of the issuing state to be a full and true copy thereof, and must show that the standards, eligibility requirements, and examinations of that state are at least equal in all respects to those of this state.

Sec. 18. Section 6, chapter 149, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 10, chapter 77, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.22.120 are each amended to read as follows:

Every person practicing podiatry must renew his license each year and pay a renewal fee ~~((of not more than twenty-five dollars to be))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Any podiatry license that has been allowed to lapse may be renewed by presentation of a new character certificate as required for examination, together with the payment of the annual license fee.

Sec. 19. Section 5, chapter 5, Laws of 1919 as last amended by section 9, chapter 97, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. and RCW 18.25.020 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Any person not now licensed to practice chiropractic in this state and who desires to practice chiropractic in this state, before it shall be lawful for him to do so, shall make application therefor to the director ~~((of licenses))~~, upon such form and in such manner as may be adopted and directed by the director. Each applicant who matriculates after January 1, 1975, shall have completed not less than one-half of the requirements for a baccalaureate degree at an accredited and approved college or university and shall be a graduate of a chiropractic school or college accredited and approved by the board of chiropractic examiners and shall show satisfactory evidence of completion by each applicant of a resident course of study of not less than four thousand classroom hours of instruction in such school or college. Applications shall be in writing and shall be signed by the applicant in his own handwriting and shall be sworn to before some officer authorized to administer oaths, and shall recite the history of the applicant as to his educational advantages, his experience in matters pertaining to a knowledge of the care of the sick, how long he has studied chiropractic, under what teachers, what collateral

branches, if any, he has studied, the length of time he has engaged in clinical practice; accompanying the same by reference therein, with any proof thereof in the shape of diplomas, certificates, and shall accompany said application with satisfactory evidence of good character and reputation.

(2) There shall be paid to the director (~~((of licenses))~~) by each applicant for a license, a fee (~~((of twenty-five dollars, ten dollars of))~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended which shall accompany application and ~~((the remainder, fifteen dollars,))~~ a fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which shall be paid upon issuance of license. Like fees shall be paid for any subsequent examination and application.

Sec. 20. Section 14, chapter 5, Laws of 1919 as amended by section 6, chapter 227, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.25.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Persons licensed to practice chiropractic under the laws of any other state having equal requirements of this chapter, may, in the discretion of the board of chiropractic examiners, and after examination by the board in principles of chiropractic, x-ray, and adjusting, as taught by chiropractic schools and colleges, be issued a license to practice in this state without further examination, upon payment of ~~((the))~~ a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars as herein provided))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 21. Section 8, chapter 5, Laws of 1919 and RCW 18.25.050 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The director (~~((of licenses))~~) may refuse to grant or may revoke a license to practice chiropractic in this state or may cause a licentiate's name to be removed from the records in the office of the county clerk of any county in this state upon any of the following grounds, to wit: The employment of fraud or deception in applying for a license or in passing an examination provided for in this chapter; the practice of chiropractic under a false or assumed name, or the impersonation of another practitioner of like or different name; the conviction of a crime involving moral turpitude; habitual intemperance in the use of ardent spirits, ~~((narcotics))~~ controlled substances, or stimulants to such an extent as to incapacitate him or her for the performance of ~~((their))~~ his or her professional duties(;;); exploiting or advertising through the press, or by the use of handbills, circulars, or other periodicals, other than professional cards, giving only name, address, profession, office hours, and telephone connections. Any person who is a licentiate, or who is an applicant for a license to practice chiropractic against whom any of the foregoing grounds for revoking or refusing a license, is presented to said director with a view of having the director revoke or refuse to grant a license, shall be furnished with a copy of the complaint, and shall have a hearing before said director in person or by attorney, and witnesses may be examined by said director respecting the guilt or innocence of said accused.

(2) Said director may at any time within two years of the refusal or revocation or cancellation of registration under this section, issue a new license or grant a license to the person affected, restoring him to, or conferring upon him all the rights and privileges of, and pertaining to the practice of chiropractic as defined and regulated by this chapter. Any person to whom such have been restored shall

pay to the director (~~((the sum of twenty-five dollars))~~) a fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended upon issuance of a new license.

Sec. 22. Section 10, chapter 5, Laws of 1919 as last amended by section 11, chapter 97, Laws of 1974 ex. sess. and RCW 18.25.070 are each amended to read as follows:

Every person practicing chiropractic shall, as a prerequisite to annual renewal of license, submit to the director at the time of application therefor, satisfactory proof showing attendance during the preceding year, at one or more chiropractic symposiums which are recognized and approved by the board of chiropractic examiners: PROVIDED, That the board may, for good cause shown, waive said attendance.

(1) Symposiums approved, by the board, for licensees practicing or residing within the state of Washington are those sponsored or conducted by the Washington Chiropractor's Association, the Chiropractic Society of Washington, the American Chiropractic Association, or The International Chiropractic Association, or an approved chiropractic college and which devote themselves to lectures or demonstrations concerning matters which are recognized in the state of Washington chiropractic licensing laws.

(2) Symposiums approved, by the board, for licensees practicing and residing outside the state are those sponsored or conducted by an approved chiropractic college or a recognized chiropractic organization which is representative of the chiropractors of a state, a territory, a province, or a country.

(3) To be eligible for approval, a symposium shall:

(a) Be sponsored by an approved chiropractic college or a recognized chiropractic organization which is representative of the chiropractors of a state, a territory, a province, or a country; and

(b) Extend over a period of at least two days, and offer an education program consisting of at least eight hours; and

(c) Include instruction by at least two outstanding chiropractic educators.

Every person practicing chiropractic within this state shall pay on or before the first day of September of each year, after a license is issued to him as herein provided, to said director a renewal license fee (~~((of not more than twenty-five dollars))~~) to be determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. The director shall, thirty days or more before September first, of each year mail to all chiropractors in the state a notice of the fact that the renewal fee will be due on or before the first of September. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed so as to require that the receipts shall be recorded as original licenses are required to be recorded.

The failure of any licensed chiropractor to pay his annual license renewal fee by the first day of October following the date on which the fee was due shall work a forfeiture of his license. It shall not be reinstated except upon written application and the payment of a penalty (~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~) to be determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, together with all annual license renewal fees delinquent at the time of the forfeiture, and

those for each year thereafter up to the time of reinstatement. Should the licentiate allow his license to elapse for more than three years, he must be reexamined as for a new license.

Sec. 23. Section 3, chapter 201, Laws of 1967 as amended by section 6, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.28.030 are each amended to read as follows:

An application for a license shall be in writing, under oath, and in the form prescribed by the director. The application shall contain such relevant information as the director may require, but in all cases shall contain the name and residential and business addresses of each individual applicant, and of each member when the applicant is a partnership or association, and of each director and officer when the applicant is a corporation.

Except as provided hereinafter in this section the applicant shall pay an investigation fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ and a licensing fee ~~((of not more than eighty dollars to be))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended: PROVIDED, That a branch office of a licensed debt adjusting agency need not pay an investigation fee but only the licensing fee. If a license is not issued in response to the application, the director shall return the licensing fee to the applicant. An annual license fee ~~((of not more than eighty dollars, to be))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, shall be paid to the director by January 1st of each year. If the annual license fee is not paid by January 1st, the licensee shall be assessed a penalty for late payment ~~((in the amount of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. And if the fee and penalty are not paid by January 31st, reapplication for a new license will be necessary, which may include taking any examination prescribed by the director.

The applicant shall file a surety bond with the director or in lieu thereof the applicant may file with the director a cash deposit or other negotiable security acceptable to the director and under conditions set forth in RCW 18.28.040: PROVIDED, That each branch office of a debt adjusting agency shall be required to be bonded as provided herein, but no bond will be required of an individual applicant while he is employed by a bonded debt adjusting agency or branch thereof.

The applicant shall furnish the director with such proof as the director may reasonably require to establish the qualifications set forth in RCW 18.28.060.

If the applicant is an individual person making an original license application he shall pay an examination fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

If the applicant is applying for a debt adjusting agency license it shall furnish the director with complete forms of all contracts and assignments designed for execution by debtors making any assignments to or placing any property with the applicant for the purpose of paying the creditors of such debtors, and complete forms of all contracts and agreements designed for execution by creditors to whom payments are made by the applicant. Only such forms furnished the director and not disapproved by him shall be used by a debt adjusting agency licensee.

Sec. 24. Section 28, chapter 16, Laws of 1923 as last amended by section 21, chapter 292, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.29.020 are each amended to read as follows:

Any citizen of this state of good moral character who shall have attained the age of eighteen years may file his application for license as a dental hygienist in the manner provided by law on forms furnished by the director of motor vehicles and shall submit with said application proof of said applicant's graduation from a training school for dental hygienists. Said application shall be signed and sworn to by said applicant. Each applicant shall pay a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended which shall accompany his application.

Sec. 25. Section 33, chapter 16, Laws of 1923 as amended by section 3, chapter 47, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.29.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Applicants licensed as dental hygienists under the laws of other states whose requirements are equal to those of this state and who have been engaged in the lawful practice of dental hygiene for a period of not less than three years in such state may, upon the payment of a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, be granted licenses as dental hygienists in this state without examination: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That the privileges of this section shall be extended only to those states which extend to this state the same privilege.

Sec. 26. Section 32, chapter 16, Laws of 1923 as amended by section 5, chapter 47, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.29.070 are each amended to read as follows:

Every person licensed as a dental hygienist shall pay on or before the first day of October of each year after a license is issued to him a license renewal fee ~~((of ten dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended and the license renewal certificate which shall be thereupon issued by the director of motor vehicles shall be displayed with the license of said licensee.

Sec. 27. Section 29, chapter 52, Laws of 1957 as amended by section 1, chapter 49, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.32.110 are each amended to read as follows:

Except as otherwise provided in RCW 18.32.210, as now or hereafter amended each applicant shall pay a fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which shall accompany his application: PROVIDED, That applicants not licensed in another state and not residents of this state for at least six consecutive months shall pay an additional investigation fee ~~((of thirty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 28. Section 5, chapter 93, Laws of 1953 as last amended by section 2, chapter 49, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.32.120 are each amended to read as follows:

When the application and the accompanying proof are found satisfactory, the director shall notify the applicant to appear before the board at a time and place to be fixed by the director, which time shall be not less than sixty days after the receipt of such application by the director.

Examination shall be made in writing in all theoretic subjects. Both theoretic and practical examinations shall be of a character to give a fair test of the qualifications of the applicant to practice dentistry or dental surgery.

The examination papers, and all grading thereon, and the grading of the practical work, shall be deemed public documents, and preserved for a period of not less than three years after the board has made and published its decisions thereon. All examinations shall be conducted by the board under fair and wholly impartial methods.

Any applicant who fails to make the required grade in his first examination is entitled to take as many subsequent examinations as he desires upon the prepayment of a fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended for each subsequent examination. At least two examinations shall be given in each calendar year.

Sec. 29. Section 25, chapter 52, Laws of 1957 and RCW 18.32.170 are each amended to read as follows:

A fee ~~((of five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall be charged for every duplicate license issued by the director.

Sec. 30. Section 24, chapter 112, Laws of 1935 as last amended by section 3, chapter 49, Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.32.180 are each amended to read as follows:

Every person granted a license under this chapter shall pay to the director a license renewal fee ~~((of fifteen dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended for the year commencing with the first day of October next following the issuance of his license, and annually thereafter. Payment must be made within thirty days following the commencement of the year for which the same accrues. The license renewal certificate issued by the director shall be indispensable evidence that the same has been made.

The failure of any licensed dentist to pay his annual license renewal fee by the first day of November following the date on which the fee was due shall work a forfeiture of his license. It shall not be reinstated except upon written application and the payment of a penalty ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, together with all annual license renewal fees delinquent at the time of the forfeiture, and those for each year thereafter up to the time of reinstatement.

Sec. 31. Section 10, chapter 112, Laws of 1935 and RCW 18.32.200 are each amended to read as follows:

Any failure, neglect, or refusal on the part of any person obtaining a license to practice dentistry from the said director, to register such license with the county auditor of some county in this state, within ninety days from the date of issue of the same or to notify the director of any change of address within ninety days thereof, as above directed, shall work a forfeiture of such license, and no license~~(:)~~ when once forfeited shall be restored, except upon payment to the said director of the sum ~~((of fifteen dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended for such neglect, failure, or refusal to register such license, and the surrender of forfeited license.

Sec. 32. Section 13, chapter 112, Laws of 1935 as amended by section 4, chapter 47 [49], Laws of 1969 and RCW 18.32.210 are each amended to read as follows:

Any dentist who has been lawfully licensed to practice in another state or territory which has and maintains a standard for the practice of dentistry or dental surgery which in the opinion of the board is equal to that at the time maintained in this state, and who has been lawfully and continuously engaged in the practice of dentistry for five years or more immediately before filing his application to practice in this state and who shall deposit in person with the director a duly attested certificate from the examining board of the state or territory in which he is registered, certifying to the fact of his registration and of his being a person of good moral character and of professional attainments, may, upon the payment of a fee ~~((of eighty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended and after satisfactory practical examination demonstrating his proficiency, be granted a license to practice dentistry in this state, without being required to take an examination in theory: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That no license shall be issued to any such applicant, unless the state or territory from which such certificate has been granted to such applicant shall have extended a like privilege to engage in the practice of dentistry within its own borders to dentists heretofore and hereafter licensed by this state, and removing to such other state: AND PROVIDED FURTHER, That the Washington state board of dental examiners shall have power to enter into reciprocal relations with similar boards of other states whose laws are practically identical with the provisions of this chapter.

Sec. 33. Section 15, chapter 112, Laws of 1935 and RCW 18.32.225 are each amended to read as follows:

The fee for issuing a certificate to a legal practitioner of this state under RCW 18.32.220 shall be ~~((five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended and in each case the fee shall be paid to the director before the certificate shall be issued.

Sec. 34. Section 7, chapter 43, Laws of 1957 as amended by section 22, chapter 292, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.34.070 are each amended to read as follows:

Any applicant for a license shall be examined if he pays an examination fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended and certifies under oath that:

- (1) He is eighteen years or more of age; and
- (2) He has graduated from an accredited high school; and
- (3) He is a citizen of the United States or has declared his intention of becoming such citizen in accordance with law; and
- (4) He is of good moral character; and
- (5) He has either:
 - (a) Had at least three years of apprenticeship training; or
 - (b) Successfully completed a prescribed course in opticianry in a college or university approved by the director; or
 - (c) Been principally engaged in practicing as a dispensing optician not in the state of Washington for five years.

Sec. 35. Section 12, chapter 43, Laws of 1957 and RCW 18.34.120 are each amended to read as follows:

Each licensee hereunder shall pay an annual renewal registration fee (~~(of twenty-five dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, on or before the first day of July of each year, and thereupon the license of such person shall be renewed for a period of one year. Any failure to pay the annual renewal registration fee shall render the license invalid, but such license shall be reinstated upon written application therefor to the director and payment of a penalty (~~(of ten dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, together with all delinquent annual license renewal fees.

Sec. 36. Section 4, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.35.040 are each amended to read as follows:

An applicant for license shall be at least eighteen years of age, shall pay a fee (~~(of sixty dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, and shall show to the satisfaction of the department that he is free of any infectious or contagious disease which would involve undue risk to the public. An applicant shall not be issued a license under the provisions of this chapter unless he:

- (1) Satisfactorily completes the examination required by this chapter; or
- (2) Has been engaged in the fitting and dispensing of hearing aids in the state of Washington for a period of six months immediately prior to July 16, 1973: PROVIDED, That any person receiving a license under this section shall be required to complete and pass the examination by the date on which the names of those persons who have passed the third examination subsequent to July 16, 1973, are disclosed by the department; or
- (3) Holds a current, unsuspended, unrevoked license or certificate from a state or jurisdiction with whom the department has entered into a reciprocal agreement.

Sec. 37. Section 6, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.35.060 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) The department shall issue a trainee license to any applicant who has shown to the satisfaction of the department that:

- (a) He is at least eighteen years of age;
- (b) He is free of any infectious or contagious disease;
- (c) If issued a trainee license, he would be employed and directly supervised in the fitting and dispensing of hearing aids by a person licensed under this chapter in a capacity other than trainee; and
- (d) He has paid an application fee (~~(of twenty-five dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, to the department.

The provisions of RCW 18.35.030 and 18.35.110 through 18.35.130 shall apply to any person issued a trainee license. Pursuant to the provisions of this section, a person issued a trainee license may engage in the fitting and dispensing of hearing aids without having first passed the examination provided under this chapter.

(2) The trainee license shall contain the name of the person licensed under this chapter who is employing and supervising the trainee and an acknowledgment

executed by such person that he is responsible for all acts of the trainee in connection with the fitting and dispensing of hearing aids.

(3) A trainee may fit and dispense hearing aids, but only if he is under the direction and supervision of a person licensed under this chapter in a capacity other than trainee.

(4) The trainee license shall expire one year from the date of its issuance except that at the discretion of the department on recommendation of the council the license may be reissued for one additional year only.

(5) No person licensed under this chapter may assume the responsibility for more than three trainees at any one time, unless approved in writing by the department.

Sec. 38. Section 8, chapter 106, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 18.35.080 are each amended to read as follows:

The department shall license each applicant, without discrimination, who satisfactorily completes the required examination and, upon payment of ~~((one hundred twenty-five dollars))~~ a fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended to the department, shall issue to the applicant a license. The license shall be effective until December 31st of the year in which it is issued.

Sec. 39. Section 3, chapter 36, Laws of 1919 and RCW 18.36.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Only persons desiring to practice drugless therapeutics in this state shall apply to said director ~~((of licenses))~~ for a license and pay a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars as hereinafter specified))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which sum in no case shall be refunded. If at a time appointed, or at the next regular examination, he or she shall prove he or she has completed a residence course of three entire sessions of thirty-six weeks each at a chartered drugless school, the entrance requirements of which was a high school education, or its equivalent and shall pass an examination in the following subjects, to wit: anatomy, physiology, hygiene, symptomatology, urinalysis, dietetics, hydrotherapy, radiography, electrotherapy, gynecology, obstetrics, psychology, mechanical and manual manipulation, they shall be granted a license by said director, or if the school attendance of said applicant was prior to the passage of RCW 18.36.010 through 18.36.165 a diploma from a chartered drugless school, the entrance requirements of which was a common school education or its equivalent, and two years continuous practice in this state shall suffice; or if the applicant has no diploma but has been in continuous practice in any of the drugless systems herein mentioned for the past four years, two years of which shall have been in continuous practice in one place in this state, he or she shall be allowed to practice: PROVIDED, said applicant shall take an examination on the following subjects: anatomy, physiology, hygiene, symptomatology, mechanical and manual manipulation. After such examination the director shall grant the applicant a license to practice drugless therapeutics in the state of Washington. The examinations shall be both scientific and practical and thoroughly test the fitness of the candidate. All answers to questions peculiar to any school of therapeutics shall be scrutinized and their sufficiency passed upon by the director, but the following subjects, to wit: anatomy, physiology, hygiene, urinalysis, and gynecology, shall

be construed to be in common with all systems herein mentioned, and each candidate shall be examined in each of said subjects: PROVIDED, after 1921, the following subjects shall be construed as common to all systems, to wit: anatomy, physiology, hygiene, urinalysis, symptomatology, hydrotherapy, and gynecology. The director may refuse to grant a license to, or may revoke the license of any person guilty of unprofessional conduct, subject to the right of appeal within ninety days, to the superior court of the county where the board met when said license was refused, or revocation made. Any license granted without a full and fair compliance with the provisions of RCW 18.36.010 through 18.36.165 may be canceled in any action brought in the name of the state by the prosecuting attorney of the county where the examination was held, or said action may be brought by the attorney general; and if a license is denied an applicant shall have the right to petition the superior court where said examination was held for an order compelling said board to issue said license.

Continuous practice as herein provided shall be construed to apply to drugless physicians who have actually been practicing in this state, even if they have not received a license under the present medical laws.

Sec. 40. Section 11, chapter 36, Laws of 1919 and RCW 18.36.050 are each amended to read as follows:

The examination held by the director (~~(of licenses)~~) under RCW 18.36.010 through 18.36.165 shall be conducted in accordance with the following regulations:

(1) Each applicant is required to make an affidavit setting forth his age, place of residence, time and place of each course of lectures, or other work connected with his drugless education and the date of graduation, or length of time in practice. The affidavit must be corroborated by the exhibition of a certificate from the proper officers of the college, showing that the applicant had completed the prescribed course for graduation. No advance standing shall be recognized for work done at other than drugless colleges.

(2) A fee (~~(of twenty-five dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended must accompany the application. This fee is under no consideration to be returned, but if the applicant should fail to secure an average of sixty-five percent, and should be denied a license, such applicant shall, without paying a further fee and without losing his classification under the provisions of RCW 18.36.010 through 18.36.165, be permitted to take another examination any time within two years. Drugless practitioners who hold a diploma from a legally incorporated drugless school who have practiced in this state two years previous to the passing of RCW 18.36.010 through 18.36.165 and those having no diploma but who have been in continuous practice in this state for three years, shall be given a credit of fifteen percent on the general average.

(3) The examination shall be in charge of the director, and the papers of candidates shall be known by numbers which shall be arranged as follows: Envelopes shall be numbered and each containing a blank corresponding to the number, on which blank the applicant shall write his name and address, and return to the envelope, sealed by the applicant, and delivered to the director. Each candidate shall place on his paper the number given him and the year of graduation.

(4) The director shall examine the papers and place the mark opposite each candidate's number. When the markings are completed, the envelopes containing the names are to be opened and the names placed opposite their respective numbers.

(5) No dishonest methods will be tolerated, and any candidate disregarding these rules shall be debarred from further examination.

(6) Each subject for examination shall be covered by ten questions, and two hours' time shall be allowed for each subject.

(7) No candidate shall be allowed to leave the examination room after the question papers have been distributed, until the questions are answered and delivered to the examiners in charge.

(8) All examinations shall be in English. Within twenty days after a license is granted or refused, the reasons shall be set forth in writing and placed with the papers used in the examination, and all of said examination papers shall be filed with the director within thirty days after said license has been granted or refused.

Sec. 41. Section 1, chapter 83, Laws of 1953 as amended by section 7, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.36.115 are each amended to read as follows:

Every person heretofore or hereafter granted a license under this chapter shall pay to the director an annual license renewal fee ~~((of not more than twenty-five dollars,))~~ to be determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, on or before the first day of July of each year, and thereupon the license of such person shall be renewed for a period of one year. Any failure to register and pay the annual license renewal fee shall render the license invalid, but such license shall be reinstated upon written application therefor to the director, and payment to the state of a penalty ~~((of ten dollars))~~ fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, together with all delinquent annual license renewal fees.

Sec. 42. Section 6, chapter 108, Laws of 1937 as amended by section 8, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.39.050 are each amended to read as follows:

Every application for a license hereunder, whether for an initial issue or for a renewal of one already granted, shall be made in writing on a form prescribed by the director and be verified by oath or affirmation before some person authorized by law to administer the same. The original application shall be accompanied by a natural photo of applicant. Every person making application for an initial issue of a license when an examination is required shall pay to the state treasurer ~~((the sum of twenty-five dollars))~~ a fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended and, in case such application is granted he shall pay the further ~~((sum of fifteen dollars))~~ fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended prior to the issuance of such license. Every licensed embalmer or licensed funeral director shall make an application for a renewal of his license for the succeeding year, on or before the 31st day of December of the current year, and pay to the state treasurer ~~((the sum of not more than ten dollars,))~~ a fee to be determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, and upon the payment thereof shall be entitled to a renewal of his license.

Sec. 43. Section 10, chapter 108, Laws of 1937 and RCW 18.39.120 are each amended to read as follows:

Every person engaged in the business of funeral directing or embalming, who shall employ an apprentice or apprentices to assist him in the conduct of such business, shall register the name of each apprentice so employed with said director ~~((of licenses))~~ at the time of the beginning of said apprenticeship, and such person shall also forward to the said director ~~((of licenses))~~ notice of the termination of such apprenticeship. Such registration shall also be made in the month of January of every year thereafter by the employer of such apprentice during the continuance of such apprenticeship. A fee ~~((of five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall be paid to the state treasurer for the initial registration of such apprentice, and thereafter a fee ~~((of two dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall be paid to the state treasurer for each annual renewal of the same.

Sec. 44. Section 15, chapter 108, Laws of 1937 and RCW 18.39.130 are each amended to read as follows:

The director ~~((of licenses))~~ may recognize licenses issued to funeral directors or embalmers from other states and, upon presentation of such licenses may, upon the payment of ~~((the sum of twenty-five dollars))~~ a fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, issue to the lawful holder thereof the funeral director's or embalmer's license herein provided for: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That such recognition shall not be extended to funeral directors or embalmers holding licenses from other states unless reciprocal rights are granted to holders of funeral directors' or embalmers' licenses granted in the state of Washington. Such reciprocal licenses may be renewed annually upon payment of the renewal license fee as herein provided in the case of license holders residing in the state of Washington. No person shall be entitled to such reciprocal license as a funeral director or embalmer unless he shall furnish proof that he has, in the state in which he is regularly licensed, complied with requirements substantially equal to those set out in this chapter.

Sec. 45. Section 8, chapter 108, Laws of 1937 and RCW 18.39.150 are each amended to read as follows:

When a licensee has, for any reason, allowed his license to lapse, he may be granted a license upon application therefor made to the director ~~((of licenses))~~, upon payment to the state treasurer of the ~~((sum of twenty-five dollars))~~ fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended: PROVIDED, Such application is made within one year after the expiration of his previous license. If such application is not made within such one year period, as in this section provided, then the applicant shall be required to take an examination before the director ~~((of licenses))~~ and pay the license fee, as required by the provisions of this chapter in the case of initial applications.

Sec. 46. Section 8, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 and RCW 18.43.050 are each amended to read as follows:

Application for registration shall be on forms prescribed by the board and furnished by the director ~~((of licenses))~~, shall contain statements made under oath,

showing the applicant's education and detail summary of his technical work and shall contain not less than five references, of whom three or more shall be engineers having personal knowledge of his engineering experience.

The registration fee for professional engineers shall be ~~((twenty-five dollars, fifteen dollars of))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which shall accompany the application~~((, the remaining ten dollars))~~. The director shall also determine a fee as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended to be paid upon issuance of the certificate. The fee for engineer-in-training shall be ~~((ten dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which shall accompany the application and shall include the cost of examination and issuance of certificate. When registration as a professional engineer is completed by an engineer-in-training an additional fee ~~((of fifteen dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall be paid before issuance of certificate as professional engineer.

The registration fee for land surveyors shall be ~~((fifteen dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which shall accompany the application and shall include the cost of examination and issuance of certificate. The registration fee for professional engineers also qualified as land surveyors shall be the same as for professional engineers.

Should the board deny the issuance of a certificate of registration to any applicant, the initial fee deposited shall be retained as an application fee.

Sec. 47. Section 11, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 as last amended by section 1, chapter 126, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 18.43.080 are each amended to read as follows:

Certificates of registration, and certificates of authorization and renewals thereof shall expire on the last day of the month of December following their issuance or renewal and shall become invalid on that date unless renewed. It shall be the duty of the administrator of the division of professional licensing to notify every person, firm or corporation registered under this chapter, of the date of the expiration of his certificate and the amount of the renewal fee that shall be required for its renewal for one year. Such notice shall be mailed at least thirty days before the end of December of each year. Renewal may be effected during the month of December by the payment of a fee ~~((of seven dollars and fifty cents for professional engineer, professional engineer and land surveyor, and seven dollars and fifty cents for land surveyor))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. In case any professional engineer and/or land surveyor registered under this chapter shall fail to pay the renewal fee hereinabove provided for, within ninety days from the date when the same shall become due, the renewal fee shall be the current fee plus an amount equal to one year's fee.

Sec. 48. Section 13, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 as amended by section 6, chapter 297, Laws of 1959 and RCW 18.43.100 are each amended to read as follows:

The board may, upon application therefor, and the payment of a fee ~~((of fifteen dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended issue a certificate without further examination as a professional engineer or land surveyor to any person who holds a certificate of qualification of

registration issued to him following examination by proper authority, of any state or territory or possession of the United States, the District of Columbia, or of any foreign country, provided: (1) That the applicant's qualifications meet the requirements of the chapter, and the rules established by the board, (2) that the applicant is in good standing with the licensing agency in said state, territory, possession, district, or foreign country; and (3) that the said state, territory, possession, district, or foreign country gives like consideration on a reciprocal basis to those persons who have been registered by examination in this state.

Sec. 49. Section 14, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 and RCW 18.43.110 are each amended to read as follows:

The board shall have the exclusive power to revoke the certificate of registration of any registrant who is found guilty of:

The practice of any fraud or deceit in obtaining a certificate of registration; or
Any gross negligence, incompetency, or misconduct in the practice of engineering or land surveying as a registered engineer or land surveyor.

Any person may prefer charges of fraud, deceit, gross negligence, incompetency, or misconduct against any registrant. Such charges shall be in writing and shall be sworn to by the person making them and shall be filed with the secretary of the board.

All charges, unless dismissed by the board as unfounded or trivial, shall be heard by the board within three months after the date on which they have been preferred.

The time and place for said hearing shall be fixed by the board and a copy of the charges, together with a notice of the time and place of hearing, shall be personally served on or mailed to the last known address of such registrant, at least thirty days before the date set for the hearing. At any hearing the accused registrant shall have the right to appear personally and by counsel, to cross-examine witnesses appearing against him, and to produce evidence and witnesses in his own defense.

If, after such hearing, three or more members of the board vote in favor of finding the accused guilty, the board shall revoke the certificate of registration of such registered professional engineer or land surveyor.

The board, for reasons it deems sufficient, may reissue a certificate of registration to any person whose certificate has been revoked, providing three or more members of the board vote in favor of such issuance. A new certificate of registration to replace any certificate revoked, lost, destroyed, or mutilated may be issued by the director (~~(of licenses)~~), subject to the rules of the board, and a charge (~~(of one dollar)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall be made for such issuance.

Any person who shall feel aggrieved by any action of the board in denying or revoking his certificate of registration may appeal therefrom to the superior court of the county in which such person resides, and after full hearing, said court shall make such decree sustaining or revoking the action of the board as it may deem just and proper.

Sec. 50. Section 16, chapter 283, Laws of 1947 as last amended by section 2, chapter 126, Laws of 1965 ex. sess. and RCW 18.43.130 are each amended to read as follows:

This chapter shall not be construed to prevent or affect:

- (1) The practice of any other legally recognized profession or trade; or
- (2) The practice of a person not a resident and having no established place of business in this state, practicing or offering to practice herein the profession of engineering or land surveying, when such practice does not exceed in the aggregate more than thirty days in any calendar year: PROVIDED, Such person is legally qualified by registration to practice the said profession in his own state or country in which the requirements and qualifications for obtaining a certificate of registration are not lower than those specified in this chapter; or
- (3) The practice of a person not a resident and having no established place of business in this state, or who has recently become a resident thereof, practicing or offering to practice herein for more than thirty days in any calendar year the profession of engineering or land surveying, if he shall have filed with the board an application for a certificate of registration and shall have paid the fee required by this chapter: PROVIDED, That such person is legally qualified by registration to practice engineering or land surveying in his own state or country in which the requirements and qualifications of obtaining a certificate of registration are not lower than those specified in this chapter. Such practice shall continue only for such time as the board requires for the consideration of the application for registration; or
- (4) The work of an employee or a subordinate of a person holding a certificate of registration under this chapter, or an employee of a person practicing lawfully under provisions of this section: PROVIDED, That such work does not include final design or decisions and is done under the direct responsibility, checking, and supervision of a person holding a certificate of registration under this chapter or a person practicing lawfully under the provisions of this section; or
- (5) The work of a person rendering engineering or land surveying services to a corporation, as an employee of such corporation, when such services are rendered in carrying on the general business of the corporation and such general business does not consist, either wholly or in part, of the rendering of engineering services to the general public: PROVIDED, That such corporation employs at least one person holding a certificate of registration under this chapter or practicing lawfully under the provisions of this chapter; or
- (6) The practice of officers or employees of the government of the United States while engaged within the state in the practice of the profession of engineering or land surveying for said government; or
- (7) Nonresident engineers employed for the purpose of making engineering examinations; or
- (8) The practice of engineering in this state by a corporation or joint stock association: PROVIDED, That
 - (a) Such corporation shall file with the board an application for certificate of authorization upon a form to be prescribed by the board and containing information required to enable the board to determine whether such corporation is qualified in accordance with the provisions of this chapter to practice engineering in this state;
 - (b) Such corporation shall file with the board a certified copy of a resolution of the board of directors of the corporation which shall designate a person holding a

certificate of registration under this chapter as responsible for the practice of engineering by said corporation in this state and shall provide that full authority to make all final engineering decisions on behalf of said corporation with respect to work performed by the corporation in this state shall be granted and delegated by the board of directors to the person so designated in said resolution: PROVIDED, That the filing of such resolution shall not relieve the corporation of any responsibility or liability imposed upon it by law or by contract;

(c) Such corporation shall file with the board a designation in writing setting forth the name or names of a person or persons holding certificates of registration under this chapter who shall be in responsible charge of each project and each major branch of the engineering activities in which the corporation shall specialize in this state. In the event there shall be a change in the person or persons in responsible charge of any project or major branch of the engineering activities, such changes shall be designated in writing and filed with the board within thirty days after the effective date of such changes;

(d) Upon the filing with the board of the application for certificate for authorization, certified copy of resolution, affidavit and designation of persons specified in subparagraphs (a), (b), and (c) of this section the board shall issue to such corporation a certificate of authorization to practice engineering in this state upon a determination by the board (1) that:

(i) The bylaws of the corporation contain provisions that all engineering decisions pertaining to any project or engineering activities in this state shall be made by the specified engineer in responsible charge, or other responsible engineers under his direction or supervision;

(ii) The application for certificate of authorization states the type, or types, of engineering practiced, or to be practiced by such corporation;

(iii) A current certified financial statement accurately reflecting the financial condition of the corporation has been filed with the board and is available for public inspection;

(iv) The applicant corporation has the ability to provide through qualified engineering personnel, professional services or creative work requiring engineering experience, and that with respect to the engineering services which the corporation undertakes or offers to undertake such personnel have the ability to apply special knowledge of the mathematical, physical, and engineering sciences to such professional services or creative work as consultation, investigation, evaluation, planning, design, and supervision of construction for the purpose of assuring compliance with specifications and design, in connection with any public or private utilities, structures, buildings, machines, equipment, processes, works, or projects;

(v) The application for certificate of authorization states the professional records of the designated person or persons who shall be in responsible charge of each project and each major branch of engineering activities in which the corporation shall specialize;

(vi) The application for certificate of authorization states the experience of the corporation, if any, in furnishing engineering services during the preceding five year period and states the experience of the corporation, if any, in the furnishing of all feasibility and advisory studies made within the state of Washington;

(vii) The applicant corporation meets such other requirements related to professional competence in the furnishing of engineering services as may be established and promulgated by the board in furtherance of the objectives and provisions of this chapter; and

(2) Upon a determination by the board based upon an evaluation of the foregoing findings and information that the applicant corporation is possessed of the ability and competence to furnish engineering services in the public interest.

The board may in the exercise of its discretion refuse to issue or may suspend and/or revoke a certificate of authorization to a corporation where the board shall find that any of the officers, directors, incorporators, or the stockholders holding a majority of stock of such corporation has committed misconduct or malpractice as defined in RCW 18.43.105 or has been found personally responsible for misconduct or malpractice under the provisions of subsections (f) and (g) hereof.

The certificate of authorization shall specify the major branches of engineering of which the corporation has designated a person or persons in responsible charge as provided in subsection (8) (c) of this section.

(e) In the event a corporation, organized solely by a group of engineers, each holding a certificate of registration under this chapter, applies for a certificate of authorization, the board may, in its discretion, grant a certificate of authorization to such corporation based on a review of the professional records of such incorporators, in lieu of the required qualifications set forth in this subsection. In the event the ownership of such corporation shall be altered, the corporation shall apply for a revised certificate of authorization, based upon the professional records of the owners, if exclusively engineers or, otherwise, under the qualifications required by subparagraphs (a), (b), (c), and (d) hereof.

(f) Any corporation authorized to practice engineering under this chapter, together with its directors and officers for their own individual acts, are responsible to the same degree as an individual registered engineer, and must conduct its business without misconduct or malpractice in the practice of engineering as defined in this chapter.

(g) Any corporation which has been duly certified under the provisions of this chapter and has engaged in the practice of engineering shall have its certificate of authorization either suspended or revoked by the board if, after a proper hearing, the board shall find that the corporation has committed misconduct or malpractice as defined in RCW 18.43.105. In such case any individual engineer holding a certificate of registration under this chapter, involved in such malpractice or misconduct, shall have his certificate of registration suspended or revoked also.

(h) All plans, specifications, designs, and reports when issued in connection with work performed by a corporation under its certificate of authorization shall be prepared by or under the responsible charge of and shall be signed by and shall be stamped with the official seal of a person holding a certificate of registration under this chapter.

(i) For each certificate of authorization issued under the provisions of this subsection (8) of this section there shall be paid an initial fee (~~of five hundred dollars~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or

hereafter amended and an annual renewal fee ((of one hundred dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

(9) The practice of engineering and/or land surveying in this state by partnership: PROVIDED, That

(a) A majority of the members of the partnership are engineers or architects or land surveyors duly certificated by the state of Washington or by a state, territory, possession, district, or foreign country meeting the reciprocal provisions of RCW 18.43.100: PROVIDED, That at least one of the members is a professional engineer or land surveyor holding a certificate issued by the director ((of licenses)) under the provisions of RCW 18.43.070; and

(b) Except where all members of the partnership are professional engineers or land surveyors or a combination of professional engineers and land surveyors or where all members of the partnership are either professional engineers or land surveyors in combination with an architect or architects all of which are holding certificates of qualification therefor issued under the laws of the state of Washington, the partnership shall file with the board an instrument executed by a partner on behalf of the partnership designating the persons responsible for the practice of engineering by the partnership in this state and in all other respects such person so designated and such partnership shall meet the same qualifications and shall be subject to the same requirements and the same penalties as those pertaining to corporations and to the responsible persons designated by corporations as provided in subsection (8) of this section.

For each certificate of authorization issued under the provisions of this subsection (9) of this section there shall be paid an initial fee ((of one hundred dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended and an annual renewal fee ((of twenty-five dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 51. Section 3, chapter 160, Laws of 1917 and RCW 18.50.050 are each amended to read as follows:

If the application is approved and the candidate shall have deposited ((~~the sum of fifteen dollars as~~)) an examination fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended with the director, the candidate shall be admitted to the examination, and in case of failure to pass the examination, may be reexamined at any regular examination within one year without the payment of an additional fee, said fee to be retained by the director after failure to pass the second examination.

Sec. 52. Section 7, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. and RCW 18.52.070 are each amended to read as follows:

Upon the director's receipt of ((~~a fifty dollar~~)) an application and examination fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, and completed application forms provided by the director, a nursing home administrator's license shall be issued to any person who:

- (1) Is at least twenty-one years of age and of good moral character.
- (2) Has satisfactorily completed a course of instruction and training concerning nursing home or health facility administration approved by the board, or has

presented upon his affidavit evidence satisfactory to the board of at least two years of practical experience in the field of institutional administration which, regardless of formal training or instruction, is in the opinion of the board equivalent to two years of experience in the operation of a nursing home.

(3) Has passed an examination administered by the board which shall be designed to test the candidate's competence to administer a nursing home on the basis of the candidate's formal instruction and training or actual experience: **PROVIDED HOWEVER, That** nothing in this chapter or the rules and regulations thereunder shall be construed to require an applicant for a license or provisional license as a nursing home administrator who is certified by any well established and generally recognized church or religious denomination which teaches reliance on spiritual means alone for healing as having been approved to administer institutions certified by such church or denomination for the care and treatment of the sick in accordance with its teachings, to demonstrate proficiency in any medical techniques or to meet any medical educational qualifications or medical standards not in accord with the remedial care and treatment provided in such institutions: **PROVIDED FURTHER, That** any such individual shall demonstrate in the process of application for the examination his membership in such church or religious denomination and his license shall indicate the limited extent of his authority to act as an administrator.

(4) The initial administrator members of the board shall be selected and appointed by the governor to meet the requirements of subsection (1) of this section and of RCW 18.52.040 and 18.52.050. The three nonadministrator members of the first board shall administer to the initial administrator members an appropriate examination, and the initial administrator members shall thereafter be issued their licenses under this chapter as nursing home administrators. The three nonadministrator members of the first board may exercise the powers of the board to carry out licensing of the initial administrator members, regardless of the normal quorum or procedural requirements for board action. The licensing of the initial administrator members of the first board shall be carried out within thirty days after appointment of the board, and in all events prior to April 1, 1970.

Sec. 53. Section 8, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. and RCW 18.52.080 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Upon the ~~((directors'))~~ director's receipt of ~~((a one hundred dollar))~~ an annual fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, a provisional license may be issued to any individual applying therefor who has served, as shown by such individual's affidavit, as a nursing home administrator during all of the calendar year immediately preceding July 1, 1970, and meets the standards of RCW 18.52.070(1). Any such provisional license shall terminate after two years or at midnight, June 30, 1972, whichever is earlier. If prior to the expiration of such provisional license, the provisional licensee has qualified to take and has passed the examination required by the board, a nursing home administrator's license shall be issued to him.

(2) If a provisional license is issued to any individual, there shall be provided in this state during all of the period for which such provisional license remains in effect a program of training and instruction designed to enable all provisional licensed nursing home administrators to attain the qualifications necessary to be

fully licensed as a nursing home administrator as provided under this chapter. The single state agency administering the program of this state under Title XIX of the Federal Social Security Act shall apply for, receive, and administer such federal funds as are made available to carry out the educational programs contemplated by this section.

Sec. 54. Section 11, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. as amended by section 9, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.52.110 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) Every holder of a nursing home administrator's license shall reregister it annually with the director on dates specified by the director by making application for reregistration on forms provided by the director. Such reregistration shall be granted automatically upon receipt of a fee ~~((of not more than fifty dollars to be))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. In the event that any license is not reregistered within thirty days after the date for reregistration specified by the director, the director shall, in accordance with rules prescribed by the board, give notice to the license holder, and may thereafter in accordance with rules prescribed by the board charge up to double the normal reregistration fee. In the event that the license of an individual is not reregistered within three years from the most recent date for reregistration it shall lapse and such individual must again apply for licensing and meet all requirements of this chapter for a new applicant. The board may prescribe rules for maintenance of a license at a reduced fee for temporary or permanent withdrawal or retirement from the active practice of nursing home administration.

(2) A condition of reregistration shall be the presentation of proof by the applicant that he has attended the number of classroom hours of approved educational programs, classes, seminars, or proceedings set by the board. The board shall have the power to approve programs, classes, seminars, or proceedings offered in this state or elsewhere by any accredited institution of higher learning or any national or local group or society if such programs, classes, seminars, or proceedings are reasonably related to the administration of nursing homes. The board shall establish rules and regulations providing that the applicant for reregistration may present such proofs yearly, or may obtain the cumulative number of required hours over a three year period and present such proofs over periods of three years. In no event shall the number of classroom hours required for any time period exceed the number of such board approved classroom hours reasonably available over such time period on an adult or continuing education basis to nonmatriculating participants in this state.

(3) An individual may obtain and reregister a license under this chapter although he does not actively engage in nursing home administration.

Sec. 55. Section 13, chapter 57, Laws of 1970 ex. sess. and RCW 18.52.130 are each amended to read as follows:

Upon receipt of ~~((a fifty dollar))~~ an application fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended and an annual license fee, the director may issue ~~(([nursing]))~~ a nursing home administrator's license, without examination, to any person who holds a current license as a nursing home administrator from another jurisdiction: PROVIDED, That the board finds that the standards for licensing in such other jurisdiction are at least

the substantial equivalent of those prevailing in this state, and that the applicant is otherwise qualified. In the event that there is developed a nationally recognized standard for the licensing of nursing home administrators which is in fact utilized in licensing procedures on a reasonably uniform basis the board may by rule or regulation provide for granting reciprocal licensing on a showing of compliance with such standard.

Sec. 56. Section 13, chapter 144, Laws of 1919 as last amended by section 10, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.53.050 are each amended to read as follows:

During the month of January of each year, every registered optometrist shall pay to the state treasurer a ~~((fee of not more than twenty-five dollars as a))~~ renewal fee, to be determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, and failure to pay such fee within the prescribed time shall cause the suspension of his certificate. The state treasurer shall place two dollars and forty cents from each renewal fee into the general fund and shall place the balance into an optometry account which is hereby created for the enforcement of this chapter. Any residue in such account shall be accumulated and shall not revert to the general fund at the end of any biennium.

In the event of failure to pay the renewal fee, the director shall mail a notice of such suspension to the last known post office address of the holder between the first and fifth days of February, March, and April next following and if the fee is not paid by May 1st the director may declare the certificate revoked and immediately notify the county clerk of the county in which the certificate is recorded, and the clerk shall mark his records accordingly.

Sec. 57. Section 9, chapter 144, Laws of 1919 and RCW 18.53.070 are each amended to read as follows:

The fees for application for examination ~~((shall be fifteen dollars))~~ and ~~((the fee))~~ for issuing a certificate of registration shall be ~~((ten dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, which shall be paid to the director as he shall prescribe.

Sec. 58. Section 6, chapter 4, Laws of 1919 as amended by section 11, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.57.050 are each amended to read as follows:

Each applicant on making application shall pay the director a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended which shall be paid to the state treasurer by said director and used to defray the expenses and compensation of said director. In case the applicant's credentials are insufficient, or in case he does not desire to take the examination, the sum of fifteen dollars shall be returned. All persons licensed to practice osteopathy or osteopathy and surgery within this state who are engaged in active practice shall pay on or before the first day of May of each year to the director a renewal license fee ~~((of not more than fifteen dollars to be))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Licenses not so renewed will not be valid. The director shall thirty days or more before May 1st of each year mail to all active practitioners of osteopathy or osteopathy and

surgery in this state at their last known address a notice of the fact that the renewal fee will be due on or before the first of May. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed so as to require that the receipt shall be recorded as original licenses are required to be recorded.

Sec. 59. Section 17, chapter 4, Laws of 1919 as amended by section 1, chapter 82, Laws of 1921 and RCW 18.57.130 are each amended to read as follows:

Any person who holds a license authorizing him to practice osteopathy from a board of medical examiners heretofore existing, under the provision of any laws of this state, past or present, shall be entitled to practice osteopathy in this state the same as if issued under this chapter, and any person, who shall have been examined and licensed to practice osteopathy by a state board of osteopathic examiners of another state or the duly constituted authorities of another state authorized to issue licenses to practice osteopathy upon examination, shall be entitled to receive a license to practice osteopathy in this state upon the payment of a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended to the state treasurer and filing a copy of his license in such other state, duly certified by the authorities granting the license to be a full, true, and correct copy thereof, and certifying also that the standard of requirements adopted by such authorities as provided by the law of such state is equal to that provided for by the provisions of this chapter: PROVIDED, That no license shall issue without examination to any person who has previously failed in an examination held in this state: PROVIDED, FURTHER, That all licenses herein mentioned may be revoked for unprofessional conduct, in the same manner and upon the same grounds as if issued under this chapter: PROVIDED, FURTHER, That the term osteopathy, as used in this chapter, shall be held to be the practice and procedure as taught and recognized by the regular colleges of osteopathy: PROVIDED, FURTHER, That no one shall be permitted to practice surgery who has not a license therefor.

Sec. 60. Section 10, chapter 30, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.57A.040 are each amended to read as follows:

No osteopathic physician practicing in this state shall utilize the services of an osteopathic physician's assistant without the approval of the board.

Any osteopathic physician licensed in this state may apply to the board for permission to use the services of an osteopathic physician's assistant. The application shall be accompanied by a fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, shall detail the manner and extent to which the physician's assistant would be used and supervised, shall detail the education, training, and experience of the osteopathic physician's assistant and shall provide such other information in such form as the board may require.

The board may approve or reject such applications. In addition, the board may modify the proposed utilization of the osteopathic physician's assistant, and approve the application as modified. No such approval shall extend for more than one year, but approval once granted may be renewed annually upon payment of a fee ~~((of ten dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Whenever it appears to the board that an osteopathic physician's assistant is being utilized in a manner inconsistent with the approval

granted, the board may withdraw such approval. In the event a hearing is requested upon the rejection of an application, or upon the withdrawal of an approval, a hearing shall be conducted in accordance with RCW 18.57.180.

Sec. 61. Section 35, chapter 202, Laws of 1955 and RCW 18.71.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Every applicant for a certificate to practice medicine and surgery shall pay a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 62. Section 36, chapter 202, Laws of 1955 as amended by section 12, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.71.080 are each amended to read as follows:

Every person licensed to practice medicine and surgery in this state shall register with the director of department of motor vehicles annually, and pay an annual renewal registration fee ~~((of not more than ten dollars to be))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, on or before the first day of July of each year, and thereupon the license of such person shall be renewed for a period of one year. Any failure to register and pay the annual renewal registration fee shall render the license invalid, but such license shall be reinstated upon written application therefor to the director, and payment to the state of a penalty ~~((of ten dollars))~~ fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, together with all delinquent annual license renewal fees.

Sec. 63. Section 11, chapter 134, Laws of 1919 as last amended by section 9, chapter 284, Laws of 1961 and RCW 18.71.090 are each amended to read as follows:

Any applicant who has been examined and licensed under the laws of another state, which through a reciprocity provision in its laws, similarly accredits the holders of certificates from the proper authorities of this state to the full privileges of practice within its borders or an applicant who has satisfactorily passed examinations given by the national board of medical examiners may, in the discretion of the board, be granted a license without examination on the payment of a fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended to the state treasurer: PROVIDED, That he has not previously failed to pass an examination held in this state. He must file with the board a copy of his license certified by the proper authorities of the issuing state to be a full, true copy thereof, and must show that the standards, eligibility requirements, and examinations of that state are at least equal in all respects to those of this state.

Sec. 64. Section 4, chapter 30, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.71A.040 are each amended to read as follows:

No physician practicing in this state shall utilize the services of a physician's assistant without the approval of the board.

Any physician licensed in this state may apply to the board for permission to use the services of a physician's assistant. The application shall be accompanied by a fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, shall detail the manner and extent to which the

physician's assistant would be used and supervised, shall detail the education, training, and experience of the physician's assistant and shall provide such other information in such form as the board may require.

The board may approve or reject such applications. In addition, the board may modify the proposed utilization of the physician's assistant, and approve the application as modified. No such approval shall extend for more than one year, but approval once granted may be renewed annually upon payment of a fee (~~of ten dollars~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Whenever it appears to the board that a physician's assistant is being utilized in a manner inconsistent with the approval granted, the board may withdraw such approval. In the event a hearing is requested upon the rejection of an application, or upon the withdrawal of an approval, a hearing shall be conducted in accordance with RCW 18.71.140.

Sec. 65. Section 5, chapter 239, Laws of 1949 as amended by section 4, chapter 64, Laws of 1961 and RCW 18.74.050 are each amended to read as follows:

The director (~~of licenses~~) shall furnish a certificate of registration upon the authority of the examining committee as follows:

(1) A certificate of registration shall be issued to any person who applies for such registration and who has qualified under the provisions of this chapter. At the time of making such application such applicant shall pay to the state treasurer a fee (~~of twenty-five dollars~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, provided no person previously registered as a physical therapist shall be required to pay an additional fee for registration under this chapter.

(2) A probational certificate of registration may be issued to any domestic trained physical therapist who has credentials acceptable to the Washington state examining committee of physical therapists and who pays the required Washington state registration fee. Such probational certificate of registration shall be available to an applicant only with respect to his first application for registration, and such certificate of registration shall expire when the examining committee publishes the results of the first Washington state examination for registration for which applicant is eligible under the regulations of the examining committee.

(3) A probational certificate of registration may be issued for a period of one year to a foreign trained physical therapist who (a) makes the required application for registration, (b) holds a diploma from a foreign school of physical therapy, (c) presents credentials as required by the Washington state examining committee of physical therapists which establish professional qualifications substantially equivalent to those required of domestic trained physical therapists, and (d) pays the required Washington state registration fee. A person holding a probational certificate may practice physical therapy solely under the supervision of a person registered as a physical therapist under this chapter. Such probational certificate of registration shall be available to an applicant only with respect to his first application for registration. Such certificate of registration shall be continued until the examining committee publishes the results of the first Washington state examination for registration held after the period for which the certificate was originally issued.

(4) A regular certificate of registration may be issued to a foreign trained physical therapist who fulfills the above requirements in subsection (3) of this section and who passes the Washington state examination for registration.

(5) A temporary certificate of registration limited to six months may be issued, without examination, to any person who submits satisfactory evidence to the examining committee that he is in this state on a temporary basis to assist in a case of medical emergency or to engage in a special physical therapy project, and who meets the qualifications for a physical therapist as set forth in RCW 18.74.030.

Sec. 66. Section 6, chapter 239, Laws of 1949 as amended by section 5, chapter 64, Laws of 1961 and RCW 18.74.060 are each amended to read as follows:

Upon the recommendation of the examining committee, the director (~~(of licenses)~~) shall register as a physical therapist and shall furnish a certificate of registration to any person who is a physical therapist registered under the laws of another state or territory, or the District of Columbia, if the qualifications for such registration required of applicant were substantially equal to the requirements under this chapter and such person has practiced in such other state or territory or the District of Columbia for at least one year prior to application. At the time of making application, such applicant shall pay to the state treasurer a fee (~~(of twenty-five dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 67. Section 7, chapter 239, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 13, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.74.070 are each amended to read as follows:

Every registered physical therapist shall, during the month of January, apply to the director for a renewal of his registration and pay a fee (~~(of not more than ten dollars, to be)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085(;) as now or hereafter amended to the state treasurer. Registration that is not so made before February 1st of every year, shall automatically lapse. Upon the recommendation of the examining committee the director shall revive a lapsed registration on the payment of all past unpaid renewal fees.

Sec. 68. Section 9, chapter 222, Laws of 1949 as amended by section 3, chapter 15, Laws of 1963 and RCW 18.78.080 are each amended to read as follows:

All applicants applying for a license to practice as a licensed practical nurse with or without examination, as provided in this chapter, shall pay a license fee (~~(of twenty dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended to the department of (~~(licenses)~~) motor vehicles: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, That the applicant applying for a reexamination shall pay a fee (~~(of five dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 69. Section 10, chapter 222, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 14, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.78.090 are each amended to read as follows:

Every licensed practical nurse in this state shall register annually with the division of professional licensing in the department of motor vehicles, on or before the first day of March, and shall pay an annual fee (~~(of not more than five dollars~~

~~to be~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, and thereupon the license of such person shall be renewed for a period of one year. Any failure to register and pay the annual renewal registration fee shall render the license invalid, but such license shall be reinstated upon written application therefore to the division of professional licensing, and upon payment to the state of a penalty ~~((of ten dollars))~~ fee determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, together with all delinquent annual license renewal fees.

Sec. 70. Section 3, chapter 72, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 18.82.030 are each amended to read as follows:

No proprietary school may offer a course of instruction within this state without first registering as a proprietary school with the director and paying an annual registration fee ~~((of twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended before July first of each year to the director. Such registration shall be on forms provided by the director and shall contain: (1) The names of the individual owner, or if the owner is a corporation or partnership, the names of the officers and directors or members thereof; (2) the administrator, business address, and location of the proprietary school; (3) the field or fields of endeavor for which the proprietary school purports to train or prepare persons, and a brief description of the courses offered by the proprietary school.

Sec. 71. Section 6, chapter 72, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 18.82.060 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) No person shall for remuneration sell any course or courses in this state for any proprietary school, or solicit students therefor in this state, without first obtaining an agent's permit from the director. If the agent represents more than one school, a separate permit shall be obtained for each school represented by him: PROVIDED, That if an agent represents a school with more than one location or branches he need only obtain a single permit for such school. Upon approval for a permit the director shall issue a pocket card to the agent, giving his name and address, the name and address of his employing correspondence school, and certifying that the person whose name appears on the card is an authorized agent of the school. A permit shall be valid until the subsequent July 1st from the date on which it was issued.

(2) The application for a permit or renewal shall be made on forms to be furnished by the director and shall be accompanied by a fee ~~((of ten dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

(3) Any permit applied for pursuant to this section shall be granted or denied within thirty days of the receipt of the application therefor by the director. If the director has not completed his determination with respect to the issuance of a permit pursuant to this section within such thirty-day period, he shall issue a temporary permit to the applicant, which permit shall be sufficient to meet the requirements of this chapter until such time as such determination is made. An agent's permit shall be issued if the director is satisfied that the applicant does in

fact represent the proprietary school for which a permit is requested, that the applicant is of good moral character, and that a previous permit for such person has not been revoked.

(4) Any permit issued may be revoked by the director if the holder of the permit solicits or enrolls students through fraud, deception, or misrepresentation or upon a finding that a fact or condition exists which would have warranted the denial of the issuance of the permit, had such fact or condition existed at the time of original application.

(5) The applicant for, or holder of, an agent's permit shall be entitled to an opportunity for an agency hearing with respect to the denial of an application therefor, or the revocation or suspension thereof, by the director, and the applicable provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act found in chapter 34.04 RCW, as it now exists or may hereafter be amended, shall apply with respect thereto.

(6) The issuance of a permit pursuant to this section shall not be deemed to constitute approval of any course or the proprietary school offering or administering the same. Any representation contrary to this paragraph or tending to imply that a permit issued pursuant to this section constitutes such approval shall be misrepresentation within the meaning of this chapter.

Sec. 72. Section 6, chapter 305, Laws of 1955 as amended by section 6, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.83.060 are each amended to read as follows:

Each applicant for a license shall file with the director an application duly verified, in such form and setting forth such information as the board shall prescribe. An application fee (~~in the sum of forty dollars~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall accompany each application.

Sec. 73. Section 23, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.83.082 are each amended to read as follows:

(1) All "certified psychologists" who are certified under the provisions of chapter 18.83 RCW shall be promptly issued a license by the director. The fee for this license shall be determined by the director (~~but shall not exceed twenty dollars~~) as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

(2) The words "certification" and "licensing" shall be known as interchangeable terms in this chapter.

(3) A valid receipt for an initial application for license hereunder, provided the applicant meets the requirements of subsections (1) and (2) of RCW 18.83.070, shall constitute a temporary permit to practice psychology until the board of examiners completes action on the application. The board must complete action within one year of the date such receipt is issued.

(4) A person, not licensed in this state, who wishes to perform practices under the provisions of this chapter for a period not to exceed ninety days within a calendar year, must petition the board for a temporary permit to perform such practices. If the person is licensed or certified in another state deemed by the board to have standards equivalent to this chapter, a permit may be issued. No fee shall be charged for such temporary permit.

Sec. 74. Section 9, chapter 305, Laws of 1955 as last amended by section 16, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.83.090 are each amended to read as follows:

Each licensed psychologist shall renew his license by paying to the state treasurer, on or before the tenth day of January of each year, a renewal fee (~~(in the amount of not more than fifteen dollars to be)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Upon receipt of such payment by the state treasurer the director shall issue a certificate of renewal in such form as the director shall determine.

Sec. 75. Section 22, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.83.105 are each amended to read as follows:

The board may issue certificates of qualification with appropriate title to applicants who meet all the licensing requirements except the possession of the degree of Doctor of Philosophy or its equivalent in psychology from an accredited educational institution. These certificates of qualification certify that the holder has been examined by the board and is deemed competent to perform certain functions within the practice of psychology under the periodic direct supervision of a psychologist licensed by the board. Such functions will be specified on the certificate issued by the board. Such applicant shall pay to the board of examiners a fee (~~(not to exceed twenty-five dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended for certification in a single area of qualification and a fee for amendment of the certificate to include each additional area of qualification. Upon petition by a holder the board of examiners may grant authority to function without immediate supervision.

Sec. 76. Section 17, chapter 305, Laws of 1955 as amended by section 17, chapter 70, Laws of 1965 and RCW 18.83.170 are each amended to read as follows:

Upon application accompanied by a fee (~~(of forty dollars)~~) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, the board may recommend and the director shall be empowered to grant a license, without written or oral examination, to any applicant who has not previously failed any examination held by the board of psychology of the state of Washington and furnishes evidence satisfactory to the board that he:

(1) Holds a doctoral degree with primary emphasis on psychology from an accredited college or university; and

(2) Is licensed or certified to practice psychology in another state in which the requirements for such licensing or certification are, in the judgment of the board, essentially equivalent to those required by this chapter and the rules and regulations of the board. Such individuals must have been licensed or certified in another state for a period of at least two years; or

(3) Is a (~~(diplomat[er])~~) diplomat in good standing of the American Board of Examiners in Professional Psychology.

Sec. 77. Section 16, chapter 202, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 15, chapter 133, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.88.160 are each amended to read as follows:

Each applicant for a license to practice as a registered nurse or a specialized or advanced registered nurse shall pay a fee ((of twenty dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended to the state treasurer.

Sec. 78. Section 19, chapter 202, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 18, chapter 133, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.88.190 are each amended to read as follows:

Every license issued under the provisions of this chapter shall be renewed, except as hereinafter provided. At least thirty days prior to expiration, the director shall mail a notice for renewal of license to every person licensed for the current licensing period. The applicant shall return the notice to the department with a renewal fee ((of five dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended before the expiration date. Upon receipt of the notice and appropriate fee the department shall issue to the applicant a license which shall render the holder thereof a legal practitioner of nursing for the period stated on the license.

Sec. 79. Section 20, chapter 202, Laws of 1949 as last amended by section 19, chapter 133, Laws of 1973 and RCW 18.88.200 are each amended to read as follows:

Any licensee who allows his or her license to lapse by failing to renew the license, shall upon application for renewal pay a penalty ((of five dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. If the applicant fails to renew the license before the end of the current licensing period, the license shall be issued for the next licensing period by the department upon written application and fee ((of twenty dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 80. Section 4, chapter 200, Laws of 1959 as amended by section 19, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.90.040 are each amended to read as follows:

Applicants for registration shall pay a fee ((of twenty-five dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended at the time of making application. A sanitarian registered under the provisions of this chapter shall renew his certificate by paying an annual renewal fee ((of not more than fifteen dollars to be)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. All receipts realized in the administration of this chapter shall be paid into the general fund into a special account to be known as the sanitarians' licensing account. All fees shall be due and payable on or before the first day of July for the current year for which the renewal certificate shall be issued. All certificates shall expire on the renewal date unless renewed prior to such date. When such fees are not paid in full before September 1st they shall become delinquent and there shall be added to the renewal fee a penalty ((of five dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Any certificate not having been renewed by October 1st of the year of expiration shall be considered lapsed. In the event an applicant shall fail to pass any examinations provided for under this chapter and the board shall grant permission for a reexamination, such applicant on reexamination shall pay

an additional fee ~~((of fifteen dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 81. Section 5, chapter 200, Laws of 1959 and RCW 18.90.050 are each amended to read as follows:

The board upon written application together with such references and proof as it may prescribe, shall certify to the director ~~((of licenses))~~ without examination any person who is registered as a sanitarian under the laws of any other state, the requirements of which for receiving such registration were at the time such registration was issued, equal to the requirements so imposed by this state for registration of sanitarians. The application fee for an applicant by reciprocity shall be ~~((notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter the sum of fifteen dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 82. Section 10, chapter 71, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 7, chapter 50, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 18.92.115 are each amended to read as follows:

Any applicant who shall fail to secure the required grade in his first examination may take the next regular veterinary examination. The fee for reexamination shall be ~~((twenty-five dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended.

Sec. 83. Section 17, chapter 71, Laws of 1941 and RCW 18.92.142 are each amended to read as follows:

Any failure, neglect, or refusal on the part of any person duly licensed to practice veterinary medicine, surgery, and dentistry by said director, to register and pay the annual registration fee to the director on or before July 1st of each year shall render the license invalid, and it shall not be reinstated except upon written application therefor to the director and payment of a penalty ~~((of ten dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, together with all delinquent annual license renewal fees.

Sec. 84. Section 19, chapter 71, Laws of 1941 as last amended by section 20, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 18.92.145 are each amended to read as follows:

The ~~((following fees shall be charged by the))~~ director shall determine the fees, as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, for the issuance, renewal, or administration of the following licenses, permit, or examination:

(1) For a license to practice veterinary medicine, surgery, and dentistry issued upon an examination given by the examining board ~~((fifty dollars));~~

(2) For a license to practice veterinary medicine, surgery, and dentistry issued upon the basis of a license issued in another state ~~((one hundred dollars));~~

(3) For the annual renewal of a license to practice veterinary medicine, surgery, and dentistry ~~((not more than fifteen dollars such fee to be determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085));~~

(4) For a temporary permit to practice veterinary medicine, surgery, and dentistry ~~((fifteen dollars)).~~ The temporary permit fee shall be accompanied by the full amount of the examination fee ~~((of fifty dollars)).~~

Sec. 85. Section 8, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.080 are each amended to read as follows:

Application for registration shall be filed with the director prior to the date set for examination and shall contain statements made under oath showing the applicant's education and a detailed summary of his practical experience, and shall contain not less than five references, of whom three or more shall be landscape architects having personal knowledge of his landscape architectural experience.

The application fee shall be ~~((forty dollars. PROVIDED, That twenty dollars shall accompany the application as))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended and shall include a nonrefundable examination fee, and ((twenty dollars)) a fee for issuance of the certificate.

The application fee for reexamination shall be ~~((forty dollars of which twenty dollars shall be nonrefundable and twenty dollars payable for issuance of the certificate))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended and shall include, and must be filed with the director not less than six days prior to the date set for examination.

At any time within the first two years following August 11, 1969, the board shall certify for registration, without examination, any applicant who submits proof that he has had at least a combination of education and experience substantially equivalent to six years of practice in landscape architecture prior to August 11, 1969.

Sec. 86. Section 10, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.100 are each amended to read as follows:

The director may, upon payment of a filing and investigation fee including the current registration fee in an amount as determined by the ~~((board))~~ director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, grant a certificate of registration without examination to any applicant who is a registered landscape architect in any other state or country whose requirements for registration are at least substantially equivalent to the requirements of this state for registration by examination, and which extends the same privileges of reciprocity to landscape architects registered in this state.

Sec. 87. Section 11, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.110 are each amended to read as follows:

Certificates of registration shall expire on the last day of June following their issuance or renewal. The ~~((board))~~ director shall set the yearly fee for renewal which shall ~~((not))~~ be ~~((less than fifty dollars))~~ determined as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. Renewal may be effected during the month of June by payment to the director of the required fee.

In case any registrant fails to pay the renewal fee before thirty days after the due date, the renewal fee shall be the current fee plus an amount equal to one year's fee at the discretion of the board: PROVIDED, That any registrant in good standing, upon fully retiring from landscape architectural practice, may withdraw from practice by giving written notice to the director, and may thereafter resume practice at any time upon payment of the then current annual renewal fee. Any registrant, other than a properly withdrawn licensee, who fails to renew his registration for a period of one year may reinstate only on reexamination as is required for new registrants.

Sec. 88. Section 14, chapter 158, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 18.96.140 are each amended to read as follows:

Upon the recommendations of the board, the director may restore a license to any person whose license has been suspended or revoked. Application for the re-issuance of a license shall be made in such a manner as indicated by the board.

A new certificate of registration to replace any certificate lost or destroyed, or mutilated may be issued by the director, and a charge ~~((of one dollar))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall be made for such issuance.

Sec. 89. Section 35, chapter 13, Laws of 1973 1st ex. sess. and RCW 19.09.350 are each amended to read as follows:

To defray the cost of administering this chapter the director shall collect fees for the following ~~((fees))~~ services in amounts determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085: ~~((For))~~ Filing a registration of a charitable organization, ~~((fifteen dollars, for))~~ renewal of such registration, ~~((five dollars, for))~~ filing each separate financial statement of the solicitation of funds by a charitable organization, ~~((ten dollars, for))~~ filing the registration of a professional fund raiser, ~~((fifty dollars, for))~~ filing the registration of a professional solicitor~~((, five dollars))~~: PROVIDED, That no specific fee provided for under this section shall be collected from any person or organization more than once in any calendar year.

All such fees, when received by the director, shall be transmitted to the state treasurer.

Sec. 90. Section 5, chapter 253, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 19.16.140 are each amended to read as follows:

Each applicant when submitting his application shall pay a licensing fee ~~((of one hundred dollars))~~ and an investigation fee ~~((of one hundred dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. If a license is not issued in response to the application, the ~~((one hundred dollar))~~ license fee shall be returned to the applicant.

An annual license fee ~~((of one hundred dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall be paid to the director on or before January first of each year. If the annual license fee is not paid on or before January first, the licensee shall be assessed a penalty for late payment in ~~((the))~~ an amount ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. If the fee and penalty are not paid by January thirty-first, it will be necessary for the licensee to submit a new application for a license: PROVIDED, That no license shall be issued upon such new application unless and until all fees and penalties previously accrued under this section have been paid.

Any license or branch office certificate issued under the provisions of this chapter shall expire on December thirty-first following the issuance thereof.

Sec. 91. Section 6, chapter 253, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 19.16.150 are each amended to read as follows:

If a licensee maintains a branch office, he or it shall not operate a collection agency business in such branch office until he or it has secured a branch office certificate therefor from the director. A licensee, so long as his or its license is in

full force and effect and in good standing, shall be entitled to branch office certificates for any branch office operated by such licensee upon payment of the fee therefor provided in this chapter.

Each licensee when applying for a branch office certificate shall pay a fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended. An annual fee ~~((of fifty dollars))~~ determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended for a branch office certificate shall be paid to the director on or before January first of each year. If the annual fee is not paid on or before January first, a penalty for late payment in ~~((the))~~ an amount ((of ten dollars)) determined by the director as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended shall be assessed. If the fee and the penalty are not paid by January thirty-first, it will be necessary for the licensee to apply for a new branch office certificate: PROVIDED, That no such new branch office certificate shall be issued unless and until all fees and penalties previously accrued under this section have been paid.

Sec. 92. Section 14, chapter 228, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 19.31.140 are each amended to read as follows:

The ~~((following fees shall be charged by the))~~ director shall determine the fees, as provided in RCW 43.24.085 as now or hereafter amended, charged to those parties licensed as employment agencies((-) for original applications, ((one hundred dollars;)) renewal per year, ((one hundred dollars;)) branch license, both original and renewal, ((twenty-five dollars;)) transfer of license, ((fifteen dollars;)) and approval of amended or new contracts and/or fee schedules((- fifteen dollars per contract or fee schedule)).

Sec. 93. Section 21, chapter 266, Laws of 1971 ex. sess. and RCW 43.24.085 are each amended to read as follows:

It shall be the policy of the state of Washington ~~((to determine license fees for businesses and professions on the following basis:~~

~~(a) There shall be a minimum fee of five dollars for any vocation. Those vocations which normally work for others shall be in this classification. Variations in fees by vocation shall be in multiples of five dollars as authorized by the legislature.~~

~~(b) There shall be a minimum fee of fifteen dollars for professions or proprietary vocations. Each vocational group as set up by law shall have fees increased to cover the costs of that group as determined by the director: PROVIDED, That no fee shall exceed twenty-five dollars except those specifically authorized by the legislature: PROVIDED, FURTHER, That licensees over sixty-five years of age and retired or residing out-of-state shall pay only fifty percent of the standard fee for their classification))~~ that the director of the department of motor vehicles shall from time to time establish the amount of all application fees, license fees, registration fees, examination fees, permit fees, renewal fees, and any other fee associated with licensing or registration of professions, occupations, or businesses, administered by the professional licensing division of the department of motor vehicles. In fixing said fees the director shall, insofar as is practicable, fix the fees relating to each profession, occupation, or business in such a manner that the income from each will match the anticipated expenses to be incurred in the administration of the laws relating to each such profession, occupation, or business. All

such fees shall be fixed by rule and regulation adopted by the director in accordance with the provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act, chapter 34.04 RCW: PROVIDED, That

(1) In no event shall the license or registration renewal fee in the following cases be fixed at an amount less than five dollars or in excess of fifteen dollars:

Barber
Student barber
Cosmetologist (manager-operator)
Cosmetologist (operator)
Cosmetologist (instructor-operator)
Apprentice embalmers
Manicurist
Apprentice funeral directors
Registered nurse
Licensed practical nurse
Charitable organization
Professional solicitor;

(2) In no event shall the license or registration renewal fee in the following cases be fixed at an amount less than ten dollars or in excess of twenty dollars:

Dental hygienist
Barber instructor
Barber manager instructor
Psychologist
Embalmer
Funeral director
Sanitarian
Veterinarian
Cosmetology shop
Barber shop
Proprietary school agent
Specialized and advance registered nurse
Physician's assistant
Osteopathic physician's assistant;

(3) In no event shall the license or registration renewal fee in the following cases be fixed at an amount less than fifteen dollars or in excess of thirty-five dollars:

Architect
Dentist
Engineer
Land Surveyor
Podiatrist
Chiropractor
Drugless therapeutic
Osteopathic physician
Osteopathic physician and surgeon
Physical therapist
Physician and surgeon

Optometrist
Dispensing optician
Landscape architect
Nursing home administrator
Hearing aid fitter;

(4) In no event shall the license or registration renewal fee in the following cases be fixed at an amount less than fifty dollars or in excess of two hundred dollars:

Engineer corporation
Engineer partnership
Cosmetology school
Barber school
Debt adjuster agency
Debt adjuster branch office
Debt adjuster
Proprietary school
Employment agency
Employment agency branch office
Collection agency
Collection agency branch office
Professional fund raiser.

Passed the Senate March 27, 1975.

Passed the House May 1, 1975.

Approved by the Governor May 8, 1975.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 8, 1975.

CHAPTER 31

[Substitute Senate Bill No. 2507]

CITIES AND TOWNS—ANNEXATION—

POPULATION—CERTIFICATES—FILING OFFICE

AN ACT Relating to annexation; amending section 35.13.260, chapter 7, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 1, chapter 50, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 35.13.260; and amending section 35A.14.700, chapter 119, Laws of 1967 ex. sess. and RCW 35A.14.700.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Section 1. Section 35.13.260, chapter 7, Laws of 1965 as last amended by section 1, chapter 50, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. and RCW 35.13.260 are each amended to read as follows:

Whenever any territory is annexed to a city or town, a certificate as hereinafter provided shall be submitted in triplicate to the ~~((planning and community affairs agency))~~ office of program planning and fiscal management, hereinafter in this section referred to as "the office", within thirty days of the effective date of annexation specified in the relevant ordinance. After approval of the certificate, the ~~((agency))~~ office shall retain the original copy in its files, and transmit the second copy to the ~~((secretary of state,))~~ department of highways and return the third copy to the city or town. Such certificates shall be in such form and contain such information as shall be prescribed by the ~~((agency))~~ office. A copy of the complete